RECYCLING OF METALS AND MATERIALS: A SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY

RECYCLING OF METALS AND MATERIALS: A SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY

Compiled by

Ruth K. Seidman U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region I

and

Lee Castrow Brunswick Corporation Materials Research Laboratory

for Metals/Materials Division/ Special Libraries Association 63rd Annual Conference Boston, Massachusetts June 4-8, 1972

CONTENTS

Introduction

Preface

Acknowledgments

Bibliography

- 1.0 What is Recycling?
- 2.0 Policy
- 3.0 Economics
- 4.0 Solid Waste
- 5.0 Metals -- General
- 6.0 Metals -- Ferrous
- 7.0 Metals -- Non-ferrous
- 8.0 Glass
- 9.0 Paper and Wood
- 10.0 Plastics
- 11.0 Rubber
- 12.0 Other Materials

Additional Bibliographic Sources

INTRODUCTION

Recycling is not a new concept, but the idea of recycling in business and industry is being discovered and promoted with great vigor. Both money and materials can be saved by recycling. It challenges one's imagination to find ways of reusing instead of throwing away. In fact new and exciting products have been developed by grinding, melting, shaping metals, minerals and other materials which would have been discarded.

The theme for the Metals/Materials Division of Special Libraries Association 1972 Conference program is Recycling/Reclaiming Metals/Materials. The idea of a bibliography on the theme was suggested to Ruth Seidman and Lee Castrow. Research started on the project early in 1972. Members of the M/M Division have also made worthwhile contributions.

This bibliography will initially be distributed to members of the Metals/ Materials Division of the Special Libraries Association at the 63rd Annual Conference in Boston, Massachusetts.

Marian Veath

General Electric Company Louisville, Kentucky

Chairman, Metals/Materials Division May 1972

PREFACE

Recycling of metals and materials has as its purpose the easing of two major environmental crises. Fist, we re-utilize scarce and non-renewable resources. Second, solid waste disposal problems can be alleviated.

Industry has long been concerned with reclaiming its own waste products, and is now beginning to respond to the need for dealing with municipal waste disposal problems. Cities are faced with expensive disposal programs; dumps are ugly and unsanitary; land for dumping is in short supply. Large-scale recycling of industrial and municipal wastes is a hopeful approach both to the resource and the solid waste disposal dilemma.

Since recycling is currently an important research and development area, a bibliography on this subject should be useful to special librarians in the metals and materials field. Included is a selection of research reports, articles, and books, as well as industry and government brochures on the topic.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Professor Michael Bever, Department of Metallurgy and Materials Science, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, has contributed generously to this bibliography. Dr. Bever's cooperation and interest in behalf of this project is appreciated and acknowledged.

Contributions have been received from Metals/Materials Division members as follows: W.R. Polifroni, St. Joe Minerals Corporation, Zinc Smelting Division, Monaca, Pa.; Andrew A. Sherockman, National Steel Corporation, Research Center, Weirton, W.Va.; Rosalie V. Solomon, Foote Mineral Company, Exton, Pa.; Marie Tashima, Continental Can Company, Chicago, Ill.; Neil van Allen, General Motors Technical Center, Research Laboratories, Warren, Mich.: and Marian Veath, General Electric Company, Louisville, Ky.

A computer search performed by the staff of the Solid Waste Information Retrieval System, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, has also provided material for this bibliography.

We wish to thank all of those whose efforts contributed to this project.

1.0 WHAT IS RECYCLING?

- 1.1 Aronson, Robert B., "Student designers look at recycling," MACHINE DESIGN, February 10, 1972, pp. 20-22.

 Seventh annual student design program.
- 1.2 Cole, LaMont C., "What to do with waste: use it over and over again," NEW YORK TIMES MAGAZINE, April 2, 1972, pp. 30-31, 33-34.

 Nature's way of dealing with waste is to recycle it.
- 1.3 DeBell, Garrett, "Recycling," in THE ENVIRONMENTAL HANDBOOK, PREPARED FOR THE FIRST NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL TEACH-IN, Ballantine Books, New York, 1970, pp. 214-218.
- 1.4 Hickman, H. Laniar, Jr., "Materials and solid waste management," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, Proceedings of the Fourth Buhl International Conference on Materials, Pittsburgh, Pa., November 16-18, 1971. Edited by M.C. Shaw, Carnegie Press, Carnegie-Mellon Univ., Pittsburgh, 1971, pp. 386-404.

 Discussion of relationship between materials utilization and recycling.
- 1.5 Lipsett, Charles H., INDUSTRIAL WASTES AND SALVAGE-CONSERVATION AND UTILIZATION, Atlas Publishing Co., New York, 2nd ed., 1963, 406 pp.
- 1.6 New York Board of Trade, National Business Council on Environment,
 RECYCLING DAY IN NEW YORK, CONFERENCE, PROCEEDINGS, National Association of Secondary Materials Industries, Inc., New York, 1971, 118 pp.
 Covers the following aspects of recycling: economics, government role, waste paper, nonferrous metals, iron and steel,
 textiles. Full text of sessions and general addresses.
- 1.7 "One hundred national leaders focus on recycling," NEW YORK TIMES,
 March 19, 1972.

 Conference held in New York City, March 18-19, sponsored by
 National Association of Secondary Materials Industries, Inc.
- 1.8 "Solid wastes--an ES&T special report," ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v. 4:5, May 1970, pp. 384-391.

 Includes "Utilization, the unrealized dream of resource reuse."
- Tonge, Peter, "Series on Recycling," THE CHRISTIAN SCIENCE MONITOR, May 15-20, 1972.
 "How man can harvest world's wastes." 2. "The booming business of scrap." 3. "Hay by the ton." Organic wastes.
 "Coaxing valuable metals and oil from burned trash." 5. "Compost." 6. "You, too, can help turn that garbage into gold." Role of the individual citizen.
- 1.10 "Turning junk and trash into a resource," BUSINESS WEEK, October 10, 1970, pp. 66-75.

- 1.11 Vaughan, R.D., "Recycling and reuse of waste materials," WASTE AGE, September 1969, pp. 6-7.
- 1.12 Wilson, David Gordon and Ora E. Smith, "How to reclaim goods from wastes," TECHNOLOGY REVIEW, v. 74:6, May 1972, pp. 31-39.

2.0 POLICY

- 2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, The First Annual Report of the Council on Environmental Quality, August, 1970. GPO, \$1.75.

 "Solid wastes, recycling and reuse," pp. 114-121.
- 2.2 Kolb, John, "How to organize a solid waste recycling conference in your home town," RODALE'S ENVIRONMENT ACTION BULLETIN, January 22, 1972, pp. 2-5.
- 2.3 National Conference, Composting-Waste Recycling. First. Proceedings, HOW TO PUT WASTE CYCLING INTO PRACTICE, Denver, Colorado, May 20-21, 1971. Sponsored by Keep Colorado Beautiful, Inc. and Rodale Press. Reported in POLLUTION ABSTRACTS, v. 3:1, January 1972.
- 2.4 NATIONAL PRIORITIES FOR RECYCLING: PROPOSALS FOR A LEGISLATIVE ACTION PROGRAM. National Association of Secondary Material Industries. New York, 15 pp.
- 2.5 PROBLEMS AND ISSUES OF A NATIONAL MATERIALS POLICY. Papers delivered at an Engineering Foundation Research Conference on National Materials Policy, July 1970. Prepared for the Committee on Public Works, by the Science Policy Research Division, Legislative Reference Service, Library of Congress. 91st Congress, 2nd session, Committee Print. GPO, 1970, 272 pp. \$1.25.
- 2.6 RESOURCE RECOVERY. Part I. "Aims and objectives of the new Federal program." Part II. "How the program works." APWA REPORTER, v. 38: 12. December 1971. pp. 10-15.
- 2.7 RESOURCE RECOVERY ACT OF 1970. U.S. 91st Congress, H.R. 11833, October 26, 1970. Public Law 91-512, 9 pp.
- 2.8 U.S. Congress. Defense Production Joint Committee. Washington, D.C., 20510. PROGRESS REPORT 50, ON POTENTIAL SHORTAGES OF ORES, METALS AND MINERALS...RECYCLING OF METALS...AND RELATED MATTERS. August 2, 1971, 280 pp. Distribution made by issuing committee.

3.0 ECONOMICS

3.1 Clark, Thomas D., ECONOMIC REALITIES OF RECLAIMING NATURAL RESOURCES IN SOLID WASTE. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Solid Waste Management Series SW-93ts.j. 1971, 12 pp.

- 3.2 Collins, C., "Regional systems approach, and market development seen as key to waste recycling," WASTE AGE, April 1970, pp. 20-22.
- 3.3 Drobny, N.L., et al., RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE; A SUPMARY OF AVAILABLE COST AND PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS OF UNIT PROCESSES AND SYSTEMS. Public Health Service Publication No. 1908. Washington, GPO, 1971. 118 pp.
- 3.4 THE ECONOMICS OF RECYCLING WASTE MATERIALS, hearings before the Subcommittee on Fiscal Policy of the Joint Economic Committee, 92nd Congress, 1st session, November 8 and 9, 1971. Washington, GPO, 1972. 198 pp., 75¢.
- 3.5 Graham, Ellen, "More companies burn waste products, save on fuel, garbage bills," THE WALL STREET JOURNAL, September 20, 1971.
- 3.6 INTERNATIONAL RECYCLING REPORT, published as a special section of AMERICAN METAL MARKET, DAILY NEWSPAPER OF THE METAL INDUSTRIES, 276 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, 10036. Monday, June 14, 1971, 48 pp.
- 3.7 Meller, F.H., CONVERSION OF ORGANIC SOLID WASTES INTO YEASTS: AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION. Public Health Service Publication No. 1909. Washington, GPO, 173 pp.
- 3.8 Schilling, Spencer A., et al., "Reclamation and recycling: an economic overview," BATTELLE RESEARCH OUTLOOK, v. 3:3, 1971, pp. 21-24.
- 3.9 Spofford, Walter O., Jr., "Closing the gap in waste management,"
 ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v. 4:12, December 1970,
 pp. 1108-1114.
 "Optimum recovery and reuse ratios in a free market do not
 always maximize social benefits."
- 3.10 Sullivan, P.M. and M.H. Stanczyk, ECONOMICS OF RECYCLING METALS AND MATERIALS FROM URBAN REFUSE. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-33, 1971.
- 3.11 Wright, Robert A., "Waste recycling effort found to lag," THE NEW YORK TIMES, May 7, 1972, pp. 1,65.

 Analysis of recent trends. Discussion of progress in finding adequate markets for scrap. Results of several recent studies.

4.0 SOLID WASTE

- American Society for Testing and Materials. CONFERENCE ON STANDARDI-ZATION NEEDS FOR RECYCLING SOLID WASTES, August 26, 1971. Summary: MATERIALS RESEARCH AND STANDARDS, v. 11:12, December 1971, pp. 40-41.
- 4.2 Boettcher, R.A., "Air classification for reclamation of solid wastes," COMPOST SCIENCE, v. 11:6, November-December 1970, pp. 22-29.

- "Converting solid wastes to electricity," ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v. 4:8, August 1970, pp. 631-633.
- 4.4 Herbert, W. and Flower, W.A., "Waste processing complex emphasizes recycling," PUBLIC WORKS, v. 102: June 1971, pp. 78-81.
- 4.5 Institute for Solid Wastes of the American Public Works Association, "Salvage and reclamation," in MUNICIPAL REFUSE DISPOSAL, Public Administration Service, Chicago, 1970. 3rd ed., pp. 331-345.
- 4.6 Kenahan, Charles B., BUREAU OF MINES RESEARCH PROGRAMS ON RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL OF MINERAL-, METAL-, AND ENERGY-BASED SOLID WASTES.
 U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8529, 53 pp.
- 4.7 Kenahan, Charles B., "Solid waste: resources out of place,"
 ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v. 5:7, July 1971, pp. 594-600.
 Bureau of Mines research programs are described.
- 4.8 Lefke, Louis W., RESOURCE RECOVERY IN SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Report SW-67r, 1971, 14 pp.
- 4.9 Litsky, Warren; Haim B. Gunner; and Ruth Kreplick, PROCEEDINGS:
 INSTITUTE ON NEW DIRECTIONS IN SOLID WASTES PROCESSING 1970,
 Framingham, Massachusetts, May 12-13, 1970. University of
 Massachusetts, Technical Guidance Center for Industrial Environmental Control, Amherst, Mass., 197 pp.
 Includes: the utilization of waste paper and recovery of
 metals from industrial wastes.
- 4.10 McGauhey, P.H., "Processing, converting and utilizing solid wastes," COMPOST SCIENCE, v. 5:2. Summer 1964, pp. 8-14.
- 4.11 Neal, A.W., INDUSTRIAL WASTE: ITS HANDLING, DISPOSAL, AND RE-USE. Chaners Books, Boston, 1972.
- 4.12 PROCEEDINGS OF THE SECOND MINERAL WASTE UTILIZATION SYMPOSIUM, Chicago, Illinois, March 18-19, 1970. Sponsored by IIT Research Institute and U.S. Bureau of Mines. Available from IITRI, P.O. Box 4963, Chicago, Ill., 60680.

 Four sessions: utilization of: 1. industrial wastes, 2. ferrous and non-ferrous scrap metals, 3. mining and milling wastes, 4. municipal refuse.
- 4.13 REUSE AND RECYCLE OF WASTES. Proceedings of the Third Annual Northeastern Regional Antipollution Conference, College of Engineering, University of Rhode Island, July 21-23, 1970. January, 1971, 243 pp. Available from: Technomic Publishing Co., Stamford, Connecticut, 06901.
- 4.14 Sanner, W.S., et al., CONVERSION OF MUNICIPAL AND INDUSTRIAL REFUSE INTO USEFUL MATERIALS BY PYROLYSIS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7428, 1970, 14 pp.

4.15 Schroering, John B., "A method of reclamation and processing of solid wastes," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, 1971 (see entry 1.4), pp. 419-443.

Description of an experimental industrial waste processing and

Description of an experimental industrial waste processing and recycling plant now in operation.

- 4.16 Sherborn Conservation Commission, REPORT OF COMMITTEE TO STUDY PCSSIBLE METHODS OF RECYCLING. October 30, 1971. John D. Stewart, Chairman, Board of Health, Sherborn, Massachusetts.

 Recycling program funded and established for 1972.
- 4.17 *A solid waste recovery system for all municipalities," ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v.5:2, February 1971, pp. 109-111.

 Demonstration plant to be built to test a wide variety of refuse recycling equipment.
- 4.18 Testin, R.F. and N.L. Drobny, "Processing and recovery of municipal solid waste," PROCEEDINGS OF THE AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS, v.96:SA3, no.7345, June 1970, pp. 699-714.

5.0 METALS-GENERAL

- 5.1 American Society for Metals. POLLUTION CONTROL IN METALS INDUSTRIES.
 1971.
 Computer-generated bibliography covering January 1967-May
 1971; includes reclamation practices.
- 5.2 Boston Environment, Inc. FACTS ON METAL RECYCLING. 1 p., mimeo, 10¢. 14 Beacon Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02108.
- 5.3 Dean, K.C. et al., PRELIMINARY SEPARATION OF METALS AND NONMETALS FROM URBAN REFUSE. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-34, June 1971. 10 pp.
- 5.4 EFFECTIVE TECHNOLOGY FOR RECYCLING METAL. National Association of Secondary Materials Industries, Inc., New York, 1971.
- Engdahl, Richard B., SOLID WASTE PROCESSING A STATE-OF-THE-ART REPORT ON UNIT OPERATIONS AND PROCESSES. U.S. Bureau of Solid Waste Management, Public Health Service Publication No. 1856. Washington, 1969.

 "Recovery and utilization: the scrap metals industry,"

 pp. 24-27.
- 5.6 Ostrowski, E.J., "Recycling of tin free steel cans, tin cans and scrap from municipal incinerator residue," prepared for presentation at 79th General Meeting, American Iron and Steel Institute, New York, May 26, 1971. 33 pp.

Available from the author at National Steel Corporation, Research Center, Weirton, West Virginia, 26062.

5.7 "What's up the road for the junker?", CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROLMAN, v.33:12, February 1970, pp. 16-17, 58, 60-61.

Discusses new methods of screp handling and recycling scrap metal.

6.0 METALS-FERROUS

- 6.1 American Public Works Association, RESOURCE RECOVERY FROM INCINERATOR RESIDUE. ANALYSIS OF FACTORS THAT AFFECT ECONOMIC RECYCLING OF FERROUS METALS AND OTHER INORGANIC MATERIAL CONTAINED IN MUNICIPAL INCINERATOR RESIDUE. AWWA Special Report No. 33, January 1970.
- 6.2 AUTOMOBILE SCRAPPING PROCESSES AND NEEDS FOR MARYLAND. U.S. Bureau of Solid Waste Management, Final Report. Public Health Service Publication No. 2027, 1970, 64 pp.

 Systems analysis approach. Discusses basic components of the disposal reclaiming cycle.
- 6.3 Bernard, P.G., et al., RECYCLING OF STEELMAKING DUSTS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-52. February 1972, 10 pp.
- 6.4 Bennett, H.J., IRON AND STEEL SCRAP IN THE INTERMOUNTAIN AND NORTHWESTERN PLAINS STATES, U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8344. Washington, 1967, 71 pp.
- 6.5 Cannon, Howard S., "Can we recycle cans?," TECHNOLOGY REVIEW, v.74:6, May 1972, pp. 40-44.
- 6.6 "Concrete reinforced with scrap car steel," WASTE TRADE WORLD (London), v.110:23, June 10, 1967, p. 13.
- 6.7 "GM process uses machining chips to produce powder for auto parts," METALWORKING NEWS, February 28, 1972, p. 19.
- 6.8 Gravenor, C.P., et al., "A hydrometallurgical process to produce iron powder from scrap iron," CANADIAN MINING AND METALLURGICAL BULLETIN, v.63:693, January 1970, pp. 59-64.
- 6.9 Minnick, L. John, "Use of steel mill slag and pulverized coal ash in road base construction," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, 1971 (see entry 1.4), pp. 477-479.

7.0 METALS--NON-FERROUS

7.1 ALUMINUM CAN RECYCLING CENTERS. The Aluminum Association, 750 Third Avenue, New York, New York, 10017. Fourth ed., October 1, 1971. Listed by states.

- 7.2 "Aluminum foil scrap recovered with induction melting system," INDUSTRIAL HEATING, v.33:4, April 1966, p. 636.
- 7.3 ALUMINUM STATISTICAL REVIEW, 1970. 63 pp. Available from: The Aluminum Association (see entry 7.1 for address).

 Includes statistics on recovery of aluminum from scrap.
- 7.4 Abubacker, K., et al., "Recovery of pure germanium dioxide from germanium waste," RESEARCH AND INDUSTRY (New Dehli), v.9:6, June 1964, pp. 166-168.
- 7.5 Bergman, Arthur, "How Meggen purifies mine water and recovers marketable Zn precipitate," WORLD MINING, v.7:10, September 1971, pp. 48-51.
- 7.6 Brooks, P.T., et al., CHEMICAL RECLAIMING OF SUPERALLOY SCRAP.
 U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7316, November'
 1969, 28 pp.
 Describes process for recovering nickel, cobalt, molybdenum, and chromium contained in complex waste superalloy grindings.
- 7.7 Caldwell, H.S., Jr., et al., REMOVING VOLATILE METALS FROM LEAD AND TIN BY VACUUM DISTILLATION. U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 5703, 1961, 12 pp.
- 7.8 Church, Fred L., "Mission impossible? Can recycling debate heats up." MODERN METALS, April 1972, pp. 29-39.

 Tin vs. aluminum.
- 7.9 Green, Thomas E., DETERMINATION OF METALLIC ALUMINUM IN RECYCLED GLASS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7592. Washington, 1971, 7 pp.
- 7.10 "Kaiser's CAN-DO recycling program," SECONDARY RAW MATERIALS, v.8: 6, June 1970, pp. 130,132.

 All-aluminum can recycling program, San Francisco Bay area.
- 7.11 "Lead recovery from accumulator scrap and other residues has growing possiblities," METALLURGIA, v.81:485, March 1970, pp. 100-101.
- 7.12 Lund, R.E., et al., "St. Joe reclaims zinc with Heavy Media Separation," MINING ENGINEERING, v.20:12, December 1968, pp. 81-84.
- 7.13 McGarr, H.J., "Liquid ion-exchange recovers copper from wastes and low-grade ores," ENGINEERING AND MINING JOURNAL, v.171: October 1970, pp. 79-81.
- 7.14 Parthasarathi, M.N., "Sources of secondary zinc and their utilization," RESEARCH AND INDUSTRY (New Dehli), v.10:11, November 1965, pp. 329-331.
- 7.15 Rasher, Howard William and Michael Suisman, NONFERROUS SCRAP METAL GUIDEBOOK. National Association of Secondary Materials Ind., N.Y.

- 7.16 "Recycled tungsten carbide produces comparable quality cutting tool inserts," INDUSTRIAL HEATING, October 1971, p. 1964.
- 7.17 Siebert, Donald L., IMPACT OF TECHNOLOGY ON THE COMMERCIAL SECONDARY ALUMINUM INDUSTRY. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8445, 1970, 76 pp. GPO, 75¢.
- 7.18 Singleton, Eben L, et al., RECOVERY OF ALUMINUM FROM ALUMINUM-SILICON ALLOYS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7603. Washington, 1972, 12 pp.
- 7.19 Spendlove, M.J., METHODS FOR PRODUCING SECONDARY COPPER. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8002. Washington, 1961. 41 pp.
- 7.20 STUDY OF THE SECONDARY LEAD MARKET IN THE UNITED STATES. Prepared by NASMI in conjunction with The Lead Industries Association, June 1969.

 Available from: National Association of Secondary Materials Industries, 330 Madison Avenue, New York, New York, 10017.
- 7.21 Sullivan, P.M., ELECTRLYTIC RECOVERY OF ZINC FROM GALVANIZERS' SAL SKIMMINGS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 5205, 1956, 21 pp.
- 7.22 Sullivan, T.A., et al., RECOVERY OF ALUMINUM, BASE AND PRECIOUS METALS FROM ELECTRONIC SCRAP. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7617, 1972.
- 7.23 Sullivan, P.M. and D.H. Chambers, RECOVERY OF ZINC FROM DROSS AND TIN FROM HARDHEAD BY AMALGAM ELECTROLYSIS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 5827, 1961, 18 pp.
- 7.24 Willard, F.W., "Nonferrous secondary metals -- an outline of thier metallurgy," METALS AND ALLOYS, v. 17:1943, pp. 752-759.

8.0 GLASS

- 8.1 Boston Environment, Inc. FACTS ON GLASS RECYCLING. 2 pp., mimeo, 10¢. Available from Boston Environment, 14 Beacon Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02108.
- 8.2 Malisch, Ward R., et al., "Utilization of Waste glass in asphaltic pavements," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, 1971 (see entry 1.4), pp. 444-453.
- 8.3 Palumbo, F.J., et al., ELECTRONIC COLOR SORTING OF GLASS FROM URBAN WASTE. U. S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-45, October 1971.
- 8.4 "Recycling waste," THE GLASS INDUSTRY, December 1971, pp. 436-439.

- 8.5 Svec, J.J., "Industry involvement speeds glass recycling," CERAMIC INDUSTRY, v.96:February 1971, pp. 22-24.
- 8.6 Tyrrell, Miles E., et al., FABRICATION AND COST EVALUATION OF EXPERIMENTAL BUILDING BRICK FROM WASTE GLASS. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7605. Washington, 1972, 33 pp.

9.0 PAPER AND WOOD

- 9.1 Bank of America, PAPER RECYCLING, A REPORT ON ITS ECONOMIC AND ECOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS, 1971, 35 pp.
- 9.2 Bellamy, W.D., CELLULOSE AS A SOURCE OF SINGLE-CELL PROTEINS--A PRELIMINARY EVALUATION. General Electric Research and Development Center, Technical Information Series, Report No. 69-335. Schenectady, New York, September 1969, 5 pp.
- 9.3 Boston Environment, Inc., GUIDE TO PAPER RECYCLING, April 1971, 4 pp., mimeo. 10 ¢. 14 Beacon Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02108.
- 9.4 BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON RECYCLING WASTE PAPER. April 14, 1971, 10 pp. Available from: American Paper Institute, 260 Madison Avenue, New York, New York, 10016.
- 9.5 Crysler, F., "The demand for recycled fibers, "TAPPI, v.54:6, June 1971, p. 904+.
- 9.6 "De-inked newspapers could de-work solid waste routines," APWA REPORTER, v.37:6, June 1970, p. 8.
- 9.7 Flintoff, Frank, "Wastepaper salvage: work study and management," PUBLIC CLEANSING, v.60:6, June 1970, pp. 303-307.
- 9.8 Josephson, H., "Recycling of waste paper in relation to forest products," TAPPI, v.54:6, June 1971, p. 896.

 Supply and demand considerations.
- 9.9 Locke, Edwin A., "Recycling of secondary fibers," SECONDARY RAW MATERIALS, v.3:3, March 1970, pp. 80-84.

 Paper and paperboard.
- 9.10 Morris, Charles V., "Recycled papers: what a national question means to your business," INLAND PRINTER/AMERICAN LITHOGRAPHER, v.163: 6, March 1972, pp. 43-48.
- 9.11 "Newspaper recycling does work," RODALE'S ENVIRONMENT ACTION BULLETIN,
 October 9, 1971, pp. 2-7.
 Describes municipally-sponsored programs in Hempstead, New
 York and Irvington, New Jersey.

- 9.12 Pearl, Irwin A., "Waste product use helps paper industry control pollution," ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY, v.2:9, September 1968, pp. 677-681.
- 9.13 Porteous, Dr. A., "The recovery of industrial ethanol from paper in waste," CHEMISTRY AND INDUSTRY, December 6, 1969, pp. 1763-1770.
- 9.14 Strenge, R.A., "Recycling may mean trash for sale," PUBLIC WORKS, v.101:11, November 1970, pp. 81-82.
 Studies at Forest Products Laboratory, Madison, Wisconsin, on paper, lumber, and other wood-fiber materials.
- 9.15 Vokes, R.F., "Recovery and reuse of fiber from solid waste," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, 1971 (see entry 1.4), pp. 405-418.

 Description of solid waste processing and recycling plant in Franklin, Ohio.

10.0 PLASTICS

- 10.1 Banks, M. E., et al., NEW CHEMICAL CONCEPTS FOR UTILIZATION OF WASTE PLASTICS. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Solid Waste Management Series, SW-16c, 1971, 129 pp. GPO, \$1.25.

 Contains 4-page bibliography.
- 10.2 Holman, J.L., et al., PROCESSING THE PLASTICS FROM URBAN REFUSE.

 U.S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-50. February
 1972, 20 pp.

 "Experimental work on plastic waste from a community collection has produced some guidelines for systematic methods of processing, including air classification, cleaning, separation, and use or disposal."
- 10.3 PLASTICS WORLD. "Plastics and ecology: special report," v.29: 6, June 1971.

 Feature articles on recycling. Life cycle of plastics.
- 10.4 "Reground materials are great, <u>but</u>...", PLASTICS WORLD, April 1972, pp. 46-47.

 Guidelines for use of scrap and reground plastics; areas to avoid.
- 10.5 Smith, Gene, "Power from waste disposal; plant will utilize rubbish for energy," THE NEW YORK TIMES, Sunday, March 5, 1972, Section 3, p. 2.

 Disposal and recycling system developed for a plastics plant.
- 10.6 Warner, Arthur J., et al., SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PLASTICS, DeBell & Richardson, Inc., December 1970. Available from: Manufacturing Chemists Association, 1825 Connecticut Avenue NW, Washington, DC, 20009. Section on salvage and reclamation. Separate summary is available.

11.0 RUBBER

- 11.1 Flanagan, William, "Tires could be recycled if process proves economical," AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING, v.73:8, August 1970, pp. 35-38.

 Describes pilot plant.
- 11.2 "More mileage from old tires?", CHEMICAL ENGINEERING, v.76:23, October 20, 1969, pp. 58, 60.
- Pettigrew, Robert J., and Frank H. Roninger, RUBBER REUSE AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT. Part I: SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT IN THE FABRICATED RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRY, 1968. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, SW-22c, 120 pp., 1971. GPO, \$1.25.

 Contains 34-page bibliography.
- 11.4 "Textiles from used tires," WASTE TRADE WORLD (London), v.11:
 23, December 2, 1967, pp. 3-4.

 Describes Hungarian Palma technique: used tires are broken down and sorted into rubber granulate and usable textile material.
- 11.5 "Used tires reused," SCIENCE NEWS, v. 94:14, December 1968, p. 598.
- 11.6 Wolfson, D.E., et al., DESTRUCTIVE DISTILLATION OF SCRAP TIRES.
 U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7302, September 1969, 19 pp.

12.0 OTHER MATERIALS

- "Air pollution control may become profitable," IDWA STATE ENGINEERING RESEARCH, v.3:1, Winter 1969, pp. 7-8.

 Recovery of fly-ash from power generating plants. Study being conducted to determine uses of fly ash as an engineering cement.
- 12.2 Appell, Herbert R., et al., CONVERSION OF URBAN REFUSE TO OIL. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Technical Progress Report-25, May 1970, 5 pp.
- 12.3 Bynum, Douglas, Jr., "Wasted solids (solid wastes) and pavement design," PUBLIC WORKS, v. 102:11, pp. 56-60.

 A report on experiments conducted at Texas A&M on the utilization of various solid wastes as components of paving mixtures.
- 12.4 "Carbide and cobalt reclaimed cheaply and efficiently," MATERIALS RECLAMATION WEEKLY, v.116:1, January 3, 1970, pp. 23-24.

 Method developed by Bureau of Mines.
- 12.5 "Fly ash collection provides raw material for ersatz cement," WATER AND POLLUTION CONTROL, v.110:5, May 1972, pp. 57-58.

- 12.6 Kenahan, Charles B., et al., COMPOSITION AND CHARACTERISTICS OF MUNICIPAL INCINERATOR RESIDUES. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Report of Investigations 7204, 1968, 20 pp.
- 12.7 Krokosky, Edward M., "Waste in concrete," in OPPORTUNITIES IN MATERIALS, 1971 (see entry 1.4), pp. 454-465.
- 12.8 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Water Pollution Control Research Series 14050EPU08/71, UTILIZATION OF PHOSPHATE SLIMES. August, 1971. 128 pp. GPO, \$1.25.

ADDITIONAL BIBLIOGRAPHIC SOURCES

ACCESSION BULLETIN, SOLID WASTE INFORMATION RETRIEVAL SYSTEM. Monthly. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT: A LIST OF AVAILABLE LITERATURE. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Report SW-58.14. April 1972.

These two items are available from:
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Solid Waste Management Publications Distribution Unit
Cincinnati, Ohio 45268

Boston Environment, Inc., GENERAL SOLID WASTE BIBLIOGRAPHY, Compiled by James Hudson, October 1970. 2 pp., mimeo.

Boston Environment, Inc., SOLID WASTE TECHNICAL LITERATURE BIBLIOGRAPHY, October 1970. 3 pp., mimeo.

These two items are available from:
(10¢ each)
Boston Environment, Inc.
14 Beacon Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02108